CODE DIS BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	2n18 NU400710		
CODE DIS BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	LECHON &I		
CODE DIS BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	LECHON &I		
CODE DIS BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	604n		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	604n		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	604n		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	60 A		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	↓		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	↓		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	J L		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	014		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c	0		
D15 BLE JBLIC ted icted	c			
BLE JBLIC ted icted				
JBLIC ted icted				
JBLIC ted icted				
icted				
icted				
5	_			
5				
5				
>				
	_			
	New	STATE		
	¥ ب	Ē		
E	веу.			
	Y			
	G	0		
		OC Z		
	ice :	TY:		
F	ste			
	Ĥ			
-		+ 1		
	g			
	H			
	Z			
1212		NPS		
	ע	Ē		
		Ϊ.		
E		- `		
	DAT	 ?		
		P OCT 1 8 1972		

S
ш
ш
z
S
⊢
ᆔ
C
n
-1
-
0
Z
S

ESCRIPTION	
	(Check One)
CONDITION	(Check One) (Check One)
	🕅 Altered 🗌 Unaltered 🗌 Moved 🕅 Original Site
SCRIBE THE P	PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
early 19th older from	r-Lawrence House was built ca. 1765 with a rear wing added in the h century probably replacing an earlier frame rear wing. The nt portion of the house was extensively altered by its owner n S. Jessup ca. 1875.
painte front. mansar with a the fr and wi stylis The fr the fr rear p (Palla	<u>ior</u> - The exterior of the house is red brick (Common bond) now ed grey. There is a water table and belt course on the west . The building is two-and-a-half stories on the front with a rd roof (formerly gable), and two stories in the rear portion a gable roof. The mansard roof has wood brackets ca. 1875 on ront portion. The rear portion has a brick modillion cornice ith its general proportions and decorative details appears to be stically of the early 19th c. Both roofs have slate shingles. ront entry porch and bay window are 1875 additions, as are all ront window frames, stone sills and sash. The windows of the portion appear to be early 19th century. There is a Venetian adian) window on the north stair landing, executed by Fletcher, master carpenter, during renovations of the 1930's.
a larg and tw have a The re stair these and st Miss S under archit	<u>ior</u> - The front portion of the house is a center-hall plan with ge parlor on the north (now used as historical society library) wo smaller parlors on the south. The interior trim and stairhall all been renovated ca. 1875 in this front portion of the house. ear of the house is a series of interconnecting rooms with a way to the cellar and to the second floor. The interior trim of rear rooms is late 18th century with delicate fireplace mantels tairway trim, which was installed in the house in the 1930's from Sybil Tatem Jones's old house on South Broad Street, Woodbury, the direction of Harold M. Klaisz, a well-known Gloucester Count tect. Since the Society purchased the house in 1924 from the p estate, 14 museum rooms and two library rooms have been opened e public.
a smal	- The house faces west on the main street of Woodbury. There is ll yard to the south and east of the rear wing. Additional rty directly east of the present rear yard has been purchased e historical society for a new library building.
	RECEIVED

20th Century
. 1875
Irban Planning
ther (Specify)
<u> </u>
lt in 1765 by d the County r, who had bee olved a group of British tea 774. Hunter ain in the
•

Later, James Lawrence lived here with his older brother, John, a practicing attorney who had purchased the house from Hunter in 1798. During the War of 1812 Captain James Lawrence commanded the U. S. Frigate <u>Chesapeake</u>, and at the height of a sea battle with the British Frigate <u>Shannon</u>, was mortally wounded. His last words to Officers and crew, "Don't give up the ship,"/made Lawrence famous and the phrase has since become a motto of the United States Navy.

Concressional Pepresentation

Honorable Clifford Case - U.S. Cenator Honorable Harrison Hilliams - U.S. Senator Honorable John R. Hunt - Congressman (First Congressional District)



SEE INSTRUCTIONS

Woodbury Academy.

MAJOR	BIBLIOGRAPHICAL	R	FERENCES								
Clark	, Frances B.	**	A Palladian	Windo	W	," Bullet	in d	of the (Glouces	ter Co	ounty
			Historical	Socie	t	y, Vol. 2	, No). 1, S	eptembe	r 1949), p.
Gorsk	ta, Hanka,	I	nventory of	Histo	r	<u>ic Sites</u> ,	De]	aware	Valley	Region	nal
			Planning C							_	
		"(Open House	in Glo	u	cester Co	unty	," Glou	icester	Count	ty
			Historical	Socie	ty	y, Woodbu	ry,	N. J.,	May 9,	1970,	<i>#</i> 1.
<u>CEOC</u>	NAME AND AND				1995						
	APHICAL DATA	-171		-			TUDE	AND LONG	SITUDE CO	ORDINA	TES
	ING A RECTANGLE L			1	0		IG TH	E CENTER	POINT OF	A PROP	
CORNER	LATITUDE	LONGITUD	DE	R		TUDI		AN TEN ACRES			
	Degrees Minutes Seco	nds	Degrees Minutes	Seconds		Degrees Mi	nutes	Seconds	Degrees	Minutes	Second
NW	•••		• •	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			50 ·				
NE	د ک		0 ,							-	
SE	ο,		•••								
SW	ç ,	*	o ,	•		<u> </u>					
the second s	MATE ACREAGE OF					+				, 	
TATE:	STATES AND COUN	TIES	FOR PROPERTI	CODE	-	COUNTY				-	COL
TATE:					┦`	COUNTY					
TATE:				CODE	+	COUNTY:				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	COD
					1.						
TATE:				CODE	+	COUNTY:					COD
					+						
TATE:	<u></u>		<u></u>	CODE	+	COUNTY:					COD
					1						
FORM	PREPARED BY			L	t						
AME AN	D'TITLE:					· · · ·					
Wi.	lliam B. Bass	ett	, architect	tural 1	ni	storian			•		
ORGANIZ								1 2003			
	hn M. Dickey,	ar	chitect						Marc	ch 4,	1971
	AND NUMBER:	~ .	•								
	6A West State	St	reet			TATE					1
ITY OR	Media				s		COD				
			OTICICATION			1017101					
SIAIE	LIAISON OFFICER		RIFICATION		#	NAI	IUNA	REGIST	ER VERIF		<u>N</u>
	designated State Li					I hereby ce	rtifx, +	hat this co	onertv is	included	in the
	Historic Preservatio					National R	-	-	opercy is	nended	in the
), I hereby nominate			-		National R	egiste	r. /			
in the 1	National Register an	nd c	ertify that it has	been		\mathcal{O}	1	1. 4.	^		
evalua	ted according to the	crit	eria and procedu	res set		JAN	er/	In UH	fin		
forth b	y the National Park	Ser	vice. The recom	mended		Chief, Offi	ce of	Archeology	and Hist	oric Pres	servatio
level o	of significance of thi	is n		Y		, -		0,	Λ		
Na	ational 🗌 Sta	te	Local					ı i	0		
	100	/	vm			Date	10/	18/72			
	Calland	4	5 M	A .			/	-/			
Name	Richard J S	7	ivan			ATTEST					
	TOTODALA (* O)		LVell				1				•
T : 4 f						105	11	-1	/, =		,
Title _	Commissioner		one mt ment				M	w//	Im	LA	
)1			Keepe	r of The N	ational R	egi ter)
	Environmental					T-to	1.4	r_11	- >)	_	
Date					l	Date	+ 00	- (0	()	-	

٠

EE INSTRUCTIONS

S

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number _____ Page _____

Hunter-Lawrence-House Gloucester County, NEW JERSEY $J \in \mathcal{S} \cup \mathcal{P}$

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATIONAL APPROVAL

Putrick Andres 7/22/92

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Naaren erana iza. Maria irranka

Section number 1,8 Page 1 Woo

Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House amendment Woodbury, Gloucester County, NJ

1. NAME OF PROPERTY

Proposed amendment to historic name and property name as listed: Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House

Proposed amendment to other names: Museum Headquarters of the Gloucester County Historical Society

8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Proposed new applicable National Register criteria:

Criterion C Proposed expanded applicable National Register criteria:

Criterion B Proposed expanded area of significance: Government and Politics

Proposed new significant person: Judge John S. Jessup

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number _8 Page __1_

Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House amendment Woodbury, Gloucester County, NJ

HUNTER-LAWRENCE-JESSUP HOUSE

SIGNIFICANCE AMENDED

The Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House, museum headquarters of the Gloucester County Historical Society, is a c.1765 National Register property that is significant not only for its association with the Rev. Andrew Hunter and James Lawrence, but also for the integrity of the building's Second Empire architectural character and its association with Judge John S. Jessup, the man responsible for its remodeling. The significance of the structure includes its evolution from the eighteenth century, when it was built, into the early twentieth century. Both the 1888 remodeling and the 1930s alterations reflected changing architectural attitudes prevalent not only in Victorian Woodbury, but in growing cities throughout the United States.

The man responsible for the present form of the Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House was John S. Jessup, Esq. Prior to his ownership of the house, the Georgian residence was bought by sisters Mary and Elizabeth Lord. In 1855, the Lords sold the northeastern portion of the Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup property to the "Gloucester County Bank." Construction of this bank was begun in December 1855 and was completed in 1856. That this building was designed in the Renaissance Revival style indicated that architectural tastes were beginning to change in mid nineteenth century Woodbury.

Significant growth occurred in Woodbury during the early-to-mid nineteenth century. A 1826 map of the town shows that there were a relatively small number of structures standing along the main street. In less than 30 years, as shown by an 1854 map, the large lots along Broad Street and Cooper Street had been sub-divided into long rectangular lots — many filled with new structures. The West Jersey Railroad linking Camden and Philadelphia to many New Jersey towns had laid tracks east of Broad Street in Woodbury. The rapid industrialization and growth of railroads lead to change in house design. The growing industrialization permitted mass produced house components that could be easily shipped to towns such as Woodbury.

In 1856, David C. Ogden purchased the property from the Lords. By 1860, Ogden had witnessed the development of Woodbury as density along Broad street increased up to the Woodbury Creek where the Green Grist Mill was located. New residences lined Cooper Street to the railroad and lots were further sub-divided, now parallel to railway lines. Secondary and tertiary streets, such as Bank Street adjacent to the Odgen property, are noted on an 1860 map of Woodbury as the complexity of the town plan increased.

In the 1870 census, John Jessup, "Attorney at Law," was listed as being a resident of the house owned by Ogden. Jessup had his law office operating out of one of the front rooms on the main floor.

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number __8___ Page __2__

Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House amendment Woodbury, Gloucester County, NJ

In September 1871, John S. Jessup's father, Joseph, purchased the property from Edith Ogden, David's widow. The time of purchase occurred shortly before John's impending marriage to Mary Howell, whose family lived across the street from the Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House. Mary Howell's father, Benjamin P. Howell, was a prominent physician from an illustrious Gloucester County family.

John S. Jessup was born in 1842 in Harrison Township to Joseph and Mary Clark Jessup. He was the fourth of eight children. John S. Jessup graduated from the West Jersey Academy at Burlington in 1862 and graduated from Princeton College three years later. At the Law Department at Harvard University, Jessup studied law for a year and then he spent two years under the tutelage of the Honorable Frederick Frelinghuysen of Newark, New Jersey. Frelinghuysen later became Secretary of State. John Jessup was admitted to the New Jersey Bar on June 4, 1868 and then as a Counselor on June 8, 1871.

Jessup gained prominence in the community through his thriving practice and many civic activities. He served as Commissioner of the West Jersey Presbytery, Treasurer for the stockholder's extension of the West Jersey Railroad to Mullica Hill, Solicitor for the First National Bank, fifteen-year President of the Woodbury Real Estate Loan Association, Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders, and Special Master in Chancery.

Through the 1870s and into the 1880s, John S. Jessup saw the growth of Woodbury continue. An 1886 "Bird's Eye View of the City of Woodbury" shows a new train station at the intersection of Cooper Avenue and the railway tracks. This development made accessibility to Woodbury even more convenient to cities like Camden and Philadelphia. This view shows Woodbury of 1886 as a prosperous town with large factories sited along the railway line. Factories are also located along the Woodbury Creek. The creek is filled with small boats illustrating a more traditional method of transporting goods from place to place. The expansion of the Green grist mill from a small mill along the creek in 1856 to a larger factory in 1886 shows the importance of navigable waters to Woodbury's growth.

As well as illustrating the town's industrial growth, the changing architectural tastes are also noticed in the "Bird's Eye View of the City of Woodbury." Several large and rambling Second Empire mansions spot the landscape on either side of the railway tracks. Larger three and four story structures as well as smaller two story picturesque Victorian dwellings are located in the less developed area east of the train tracks. A steel railroad bridge on Hunter Street crossing the tracks shows that the development of iron and steel technology had reached Woodbury.

Following the mid-nineteenth century trend to remodel earlier buildings, John S. Jessup, in 1888, made extensive alterations to his residence on Broad Street. That he chose to carry out alterations

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number __8___ Page __3__

Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House amendment Woodbury, Gloucester County, NJ

in the Second Empire style was significant because this style was a consciously "modern" movement deriving its inspiration from contemporary Paris. This attitude towards architectural style in part reflected the modern changes occurring in Woodbury. It was a style of the time, not one looking back to the past, such as the neighboring Renaissance Revival bank. The Second Empire style became the great style of public buildings in the United States, as exemplified in Philadelphia's City Hall of 1874. It began to be popular in domestic architecture in the 1870s and 1880s.

Second Empire architectural alterations noted in the Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House include the high concave mansard roof with dormer windows on the steep lower slopes. A molded cornice bounds the roof slope both above and below. Decorative paired brackets support the eaves at both the upper and lower cornice. Decoratively patterned slate tiles cover the mansard roof. The arched dormer windows with scrolled wood surrounds also typify this style. The transformation from the gabled roof to the mansard roof was also considered functional as it allowed for greater use of attic space, a necessity for the Jessups with their seven children.

Other Victorian Second Empire alterations to the house include the one-story bay addition, the paired entry doors with covered porch, and the one story side porch. On the wooden bay addition, the long and narrow proportions of the paired windows were typical for the period. Simple pilasters support ornate paired wood brackets. The front porch is composed of two chamfered wood posts resting on carved wood pedestals and two pilasters on applied pedestals, each with wedge shaped brackets supporting a prominent bracketed cornice. A similar design was carried out on the side porch.

The interior of this house was also completely remodeled in 1888. It too has a distinctly Victorian character with ornate wood doors and windows with embossed metal hardware. Pocketed double doors between double parlors, glass and metal lighting fixtures, and a staircase with intricately carved newel posts, rails and bannisters also are Victorian in character.

After Jessup's death, the property was purchased by the Gloucester County Historical Society in 1924. Sybil Tatum Jones, whose great-uncle David Ogden had once owned the house, became resident curator for the Historical Society. She was responsible for the 1930s alterations made to the rear wing where she remodelled the interior in the Colonial Revival style. This style emphasized a greater attention to historical detail and a return to the Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House's eighteenth century roots.

The most prominent element of the 1930s remodeling is the grand Palladian window placed in the added stair hall. Other colonial details added include raised panelling with a classically inspired fireplace in the first floor rear parlor. Just as the house changed to match Victorian tastes during

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number __8 Page __4

Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House amendment Woodbury, Gloucester County, NJ

Jessup's time, so Jones in the twentieth century changed portions of the rear wing to reflect current architectural attitudes of her time.

The architectural evolution of the Hunter-Lawrence-Jessup House and the significance of John Jessup and the integrity of his 1888 alterations support additional areas of significance within the property's existing National Register listing.